
   

AGENDA 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 

Tulsa County Board of Adjustment  
Tuesday, March 17, 2020, 1:30 p.m. 

Williams Tower I 
1 West 3rd Street, St. Francis Room 

Tulsa, OK 
 

Meeting No. 480 
 

CONSIDER, DISCUSS AND/OR TAKE ACTION ON: 
 
 
1. Approval of Minutes of February 18, 2020 (Meeting No. 479). 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
2. 2798—Hanford Jenkins 

Use Variance to permit Use Unit 3, Agriculture, for a Horticulture Nursery in a 
Residential District (Section 410, Table 1). LOCATION: 560 East 62nd Street North 

 
 

NEW APPLICATIONS 
 
3. 2805—Align Design – Kyle Gibson 

Variance of the required side yard setback from 15 feet in the AG District (Section 
330, Table 3); Use Variance to allow Use Unit 25 for Industrial Light uses (Section 
1225). LOCATION: 6312 East 106th Street North 

  
4. 2806—Nick Brown 

Variance of the minimum frontage requirement on a public street/dedicated right-of-
way from 30 feet to 0 feet in the AG District (Section 207). LOCATION: 9525 South 
33rd West Avenue 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

Website: www.tulsaplanning.org  E-mail: esubmit@incog.org 
 
 

If you require special accommodations pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, 
please call (918) 584-7526. 
 
NOTE: Exhibits, Petitions, Pictures, etc., presented to the Board of Adjustment may be 
received and deposited in case files to be maintained at the Tulsa Planning Office at 
INCOG. Ringing/sound on all electronic devices must be turned off during the Board of 
Adjustment meeting. 
 
NOTE: This agenda is for informational purposes only and is not an official posting. 
Please contact the Tulsa Planning Office at (918) 584-7526, if you require an official 
posted agenda. 

http://www.tulsaplanning.org/
mailto:esubmit@incog.org


THIS PAGE

INTENTIONALLY

LEFT BLANK



CS

AG RS

=AG

RS

SUBJECT TRACT

E

a-

E

,v

AG RS LEGEND

Tulsa Corporate Limits

0
Feet
300 600 cBoA-2798

E=- 20-1 2 01

å,,\



BOARD OF ADJUSTTIEilT
GASE REPORT

TRS:129
CZîllz21,

Gase l{umber: CBOA-2798

CASE REPORTPREPARED BY: RobiJones

HEARII{G DATE:. 03/17/2020 1-:30 PM

APPIICANT: Hanford Jenkins

ACTION REOUESTED: Use Variance to permit Use Unit 3, Agriculture, for a Horticulture Nursery, in a
Residential District (Section 410, Table 1).

LOCATIOI{: 560 E 62 ST N ZO[{ED: RS

AREA: North Tulsa County

PRESET{T USE: Vacant Residential TRACT SIZE: 0.39 acres

LEGAT DESCRIPTIONZ E85.2LOT 7 BLK 1, FAIRVIEW HGTS ADDN

REtEVAilT PREIIIOUS ACTIONS:

Subject Property:

BOA4458 October 1964: The Board of Adjustment approved the operation of a home

beauty shop, on the subject property.

ANAIYSIS OF SURROUT{D¡NG AREA: The subject tract is located in a single-family residential

neighborhood with large lots. The property is surrounded by RS zoning in all directions.

STAFF GOMMET{TS:

New Comments (O3l17 /2O2O)

The case was continued from I/21,/2O2O lo 03/L7 /2O2O to give the applicant more time to
consult with Tulsa County Permit Department and develop a clearer vision of his plan for the
property. lt was suggested that the applicant submit a more detailed site plan.

Staff of Tulsa Planning Department and Tulsa County Permit Department has concluded that
if the Agricultural Use is approved by the Board, the new structure would not need to be

considered an accessory building to a residential property. lf approved, the new structure
could stand alone such as any building could on AG zoned parcels. However, the Board has

the ability to limit the size of the structure as a condition of the approval.

The applicant has met with both offices and has submitted a new site plan. Accordingto the
site plan, the existing structures will be removed and a new structure will be erected on the
property. The size of the new building will be 35' x 100' (3,500 sq. ft). The site plan calls for
a concrete or gravel surface. Staff has discussed the need for variance with the applicant if
he decides to pursue gravel parking. The applicant stated that he will choose to use

concrete if approved. 4 , 2
REVTSED 3/9/2020



Original Com ments (I/27/2O2O)

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Use Variance to permit Use Unit 3,
Agriculture, fot a Horticulture Nursery, in a Residential District (Section 41O, Table 1). The
applicant would like to have a grow facility for medical marijuana on the property.

A Use Variance is required as Agriculture is not a use permitted in an RS zoned district
because of the potential adverse effects on neighboring properties. A horticulture nursery
must be found to be compatible with and non-injurious to the surroundingarea.

The applicant supplied the following statement'. "l want the building to be put on my land
because of the area and the property ìs like the country and I feelit is safe there."

According to the submitted site plan, all buildings will be removed, and a structure will be

built to house the horticulture nursery. Growing will occur indoors. The site plan does not
specify the size or design of the structure. Staff has not been able to contact the applicant
for more specific details.

lf inclined to approve, the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and
reasonably related to the request to ensure the proposed use of the land is compatible with
and non-injurious to the surrounding area.

Sample Motion

"Move to (approve/deny) a Use Variance to permit Use Unit 3, A{riculture, for a
Horticulture Nursery, rn a Resrdential District (Section 47O, Table 7).

Approved per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) of the a$enda packet.

Sub.¡'ect to the following conditions, if any:

Finding the hardship to be

Finding by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstanceg which are
peculiar to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of
the Code would result rn unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional
conditions or circumstances do not apply generally to other property in the same use
district; and that the varÍance to be Sranted will not cause substantral detriment to the
public good or impaÍr the purposes, spínl and intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive
Plan."

o?, I
REVTSED 3/9/2020



the fact that lhe Comprehensive Plans shows pla the area to be residential; for the

following property

N 1/2 NE SW SEC 1.14, OF TULSA CO , STATE OF OKLAHOMA

Board Action:
rd voted 4-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,On MOTION of HUTCHINSON

Johnston "aye"; no "nays"; no ns"; Crall "absent") to DENY the request for a

Variance from the all-weather parki requirement (Section 13a0.D); Variance ofS

2798-Hanford Jenkins

the minimum frontage requireme onapu edicated right of way from 30 feet

to 0 feet in the AG District ( 207) finding is not enough information given the

denial of the requested S ption; for the ng property:

N 1/2 NE SW SEC 28-21-1 OF TULSA COUNTY, STA OF OKLAHOMA

tHH_f, ffiffipr
Action Requested:
Use Variarrcelo þermit Use Unit 3, Agriculture, for a horticulture nursery in a
resident'al dtstrict (Section 410, Table 1). LOCATION: 560 East 62nd Street North

Presentation:
Hanford Jenkins,245 East 59th Street North, Tulsa, OK; stated he would like to have a

cannabis grow house. He has been in the area all of his life and his Grandmother still

lives there. He has tried to contact the area residents and has been able to speak with a

few of them. There will be no traffic.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Jenkins if he would have any employees at the facility. Mr.

Jenkins stated that there would be three or four family members.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Jenkins if there was an existing structure or if he would be building

a structure on the subject property. Mr. Jenkins stated that he will build a new structure.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Jenkins what the square footage of the new structure would

be. Mr. Jenkins stated that he would like to have about a 30'-0" x 40'-0" structure. Mr.

Jenkins stated he erect a fence around the building and would like to have a parking area.

Mr. Hutchinson asked Mr. Jenkins how many plants he is planning to grow. Mr. Jenkins

stated that he would like to have 150 plants or more.

Mr. Hutchinson asked staff if there was a building requirement for the subject property'

Ms. Tosh answered affirmatively. Ms. Tosh stated the proposed building can only be 750

square feet without a house. Ms. Tosh stated that there is another issue on the property

if the house is razed the proposed building would not be an accessory building.

&
0u2U20201#478 (24)

,,-\



TFilf, ffiffif,JT

Mr. Charney stated that an accessory building that is not a house has a size limit in the
subject neighborhood, and that is 750 square feet. That is a pre-determined size limit
unless a Special Exception is requested.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Jenkins if there was a house on the property currently. Mr.
Jenkins stated there is a burned-out house on the property that cannot be used, and he
plans to raze that structure.

Mr. Charney stated that he does not think Mr. Jenkins can obtain a building permit
because it is a residential use. Mr. Charney thinks Mr. Jenkins would need to build a
residence and then have a 750 square foot building adjacent to that house, or it could be
attached to the house. The building cannot be built without a house.

Ms. Tosh stated the primary use on the subject property has to be residential.

Mr. Jenkins stated the subject property has two houses on it, the burned-out house and
one on the rear of the property.

Ms. Tosh stated that creates another issue

Mr. Charney stated that he wants to give Mr. Jenkins' application a hearing, but he wants
Mr. Jenkins to know regardless of what is decided today he would encourage Mr. Jenkins
to make an appointment with staff and talk through all the procedures required to build
the requested structure.

lnterested Parties:
There were no interested parties present.

Gomments and Questions:
None

Board Action:
On MOTION of GHARNEY, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,
Johnston "aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Crall "absent") to CONTINUE the request for
a Use Variance to permit Use Unit 3, Agriculture, for a horticulture nursery in a residential
district(Section410, Table 1)tothe March 17,2020 Board of Adjustmentmeeting; forthe
following property:

E 85.2 LOT 7 BLK 1, FAIRVIEW HGTS ADDN, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF
OKLAHOMA

æ,5
0U2U20201#478 (2s)



t". I

i'1t.:

-n û¿l

OF THE- REGUI,AR MEETING OF lHE BOARD OF ADJUST.

, I^IEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 2l' L964,

EllT: Avery, Acting Chairman; Ingle; Kruse
Sublett. -

This ng Ëhe-daËe.set.alovtn for public he
aPp of Kenneth PotËer, after file
1007" petí of an- affected erea creaL by the
for per:uriss Èo operaËe a home beaut shop on

u-l-c Di* B-lock 14¡ Acres ThÍrd Addition,
There appeared . and Mrs. Kennech t ter. Ttre
appeared sev rotesËants.

Mr. George Briedenb spoke for the ilrotestants
fí1ed a pecition bear some 9 signatures of persons

tbn, whicir read as

.-
PETITION TO THE_ ADJUSTMENT

TULSA,

tr{e, 'Ëire undersigned P y orfne aE the addresses
indicaLed, oppose t installation any adverËised
or unadvertised ness establisirure thin Ehe

confines of Bbman res Third Addicíon: This opposition
triet ions r. Limitations and Reser-

Case- No. 4/+57
Kenneth Potter
T.oÊ 2L, Block L4',
Boman Acres Third
Addition -

on the
da
Board,

Lot 2L,
strict.
re also

liû,ingin Boaan Acres T
follows:

is based on the
vations of ttre

.After consi
it was,

eil o-f Dedication as( reco

ab'le discussion €tmong the Board

.,

ers

Case No. 4458-A -
Berniêe Torix-
E.85.2 t of Lot -7 ,
Block l, Faj-rvíew
t{eights Addition

''"'' 1o Turley.

MOVED by le ( ) that this apPlication be

app rove

died {or lack of a second and application

Thís beÍng Che dat.e Set'down .for public- hearing on Lhe

application of Serrrlce Torix, after naving filed a
10.07, petítion of.-arr- affected area created by the Board,
for permissj-orr.to oPerate a home beauty shop on the
EasE 'ó5.2 feet of Lot 7, Block 1, Fairview Heights Add.-
L:ion üo Turley-r-..Ok1ahorna. There appeared Bernice Torix,
No protesË r,las of fered.

.æ. (,



-g-o {r

MOVED by Sublece (Ingle) thaË this application be
approved. ( :

All members voting yea. Carried.

Case No. 445g-M This being the date set down for Pu
Lea Ra rger Lhe applícaüion of Lea Rauchr.rerger

hearing on
permission Ëo

a u-l-c Dístrict
Additlon. - There
pË- wasr offpred.

Ís application.Þe

0arried.

for public hearing on
l{oU-ness Church for

che Gity of Sand SPrings,
Mr. Clarence S. GÍlbert.

e) 
:n:. 

Èhís applicaËion be

Carried.

dpwn for public hearing on
Loretta Pogue for permission
day nursery on LoË L6, Block
There appeared Mrs. LoretLa

offered.

er having filed
axea creaeed by

b

I.ot. 20,
Pilcher

lock 1,
t

operaËe a childrenls daY nursery
gn LoL 20, Bloclc. l, Pilcher Su¡:nnÍ

AdditÍon appepred Lea- Rêucirwerger. i'{o p

MOVED by Ingle (Sublectf ühat
appçoved :'-
All membetrs voting yea.

. Case No. 446L-A lng
lÍc

this be Ëhe daüe seE
Free. Holiness- Church he app aÈion of .the Fre
Lot I, Block l, rmission Ëo erecc a ch h on Lot 1, Block I'
Hall Gardens Addition I Gardens Addicion t
Sand Springs, 0klahoma Ok . There appe

NoP test r47es Offered

MOVED Sub

Case No. 4465
Mrs.. Loret'ca Pogue
I"ot L6, Block 7,- ^

Briarwood Addition

Case r\o. 4466-L
Sgr¡nie Peters
Lot 19, Block 22,
Maplewood Extended
Addition

This being th e seË
the applicaÊ f lr{rs.
_to operaËe a c ls

app.roved.
- Afl member

7, Briarwood
Pogue. No p

the
an
the
s

./

leËL (

vot.ing

ir
t.es E

.t

Pa. _

MOVED bY
approved.

(Ingte) L this applieation be

A1r voting yeê. Carried.

This be the date set down public hearing on

e

t

ication of Sanmie Peters,
plus petition, of an affect

ard, for permi.ssion to operaËe home þeauÈy
Block 22, Maplewood Ext d Addi:on Lot L9,

a LJ-f-c üis Ëri.c-L,. . There appea¡ed. S
rs. No pro test was offered.

. t ---

by Sublett (Kruse). that tl"ris application be
ed.aPProv

(

A1l members voting yea, Carried.

a,tl



Feet
0 50 100

-+
cBoA-2798 Note: Gnphic overlays may not prec¡sely

align w¡th physical fealures on the ground.Subject
Tract

20-12 01
Aeñal Photo Date: February 2|tt 2, 3



6000
Feet
300 cBoA-2798 Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely

al¡gn w¡th phys¡cal features on the ground.Subject
Tract

20-12 01
Aerial Photo Date: February t|tt 

å, n



T

Looking east along E. 62nd Sf. N. - subject property is on the right

Looking southeost from E. 62nd fi. N.

å, \o



Looking south into subiect property from E. 62nd fi. N.

\\&



å. \a



\ ^. !<r ]-1--r',

P {r(orc 1s

7çO SÈ

t'ó -9 ¡-Õ '-"/
7

?

'--- F-o C c e5:5

ñ

l}...

,. ,,..* ,...*t

{ü

I t F.,¿---
."tt

*.
a !

f

rt
a

!
a

I

4

tr.

r, rr.,...*v..ì

)

"2,, 
\9



/
úa

lto

56cE.6eú 5+,N.

P TutSc"*,ôK lq'Wú

i Ho3oprinrjps

I
I
I $

t^J V+
T
5

5?"

' '168

Jtev/
3,*e- ?lan

NotJ. q'-þ' ttigh,charn t¡nr<¿J Fløl,w'

}J
õo

Iç\

d'i

È. rt
ô

{.
;.

¡1jf\
I
¿

1..

Ir's".---.-,n.rn,

rlo
5(\
É
È
o
1
c>4tr
(\

{-

u

a7

r
vcl

Csncc¿*g o
Vra

tui\din3

Yllaìn

36

\.
Õo

I

I
F,

¡

C-t
c;|
aé-
þe
o
1rI€
È

s{ag

(on¿t¿t¿ 0r hr^o.t

ç

$

,l

til

,' , -t r¡i 
¡ /¡ 

'

htlps;//mail.groogle.com/maillu/0/#inbox/FMfcgxwHMGGqKMClqkeqsxRHrmqKsdfp?prgector=1

o?' lq
1t1



AG

SUBJECT TRACT

AG ú
tl

AG

o

Feet
2000 cBoA-2805400

21-1315

¿\



BOARD OF ADIUSTTIE]IÏ
GASE REPORÏ

TRS: 1-315

CZlúlz LI
CASE [{UMBER: CBOA-28O5

CASE REPORT PREARED BY: Robi Jones

HEARING DATE= 03/t7/2020 1:30 PM

APPIICAI{T: Kyle Gibson

ACTIOI{ REOUESTED: Varíance of the required side yard setback from 15 feet in the AG district (Sec. 330,
Table 3); and a Use Varíance to allow Use Unit 25 for lndustrial Light uses (Section 1225).

LOCATIOI{= 63L2 E 106 ST N ZOIIED: AG

FEI{CELINE: North Tulsa County

PRESENT USE: Residential TRACT SIZE: 3.03 acres

tEGAt DESCRIPTIOI{: PRT NE NE NE BEG 46OW NEC THEREOF TH 5659.83 W2O0.13 N659.84 E200.01
POB SEC L5 21 13 3.0314CS,

RELEìIAI{T PREìIIOUS ACTIOT{S:

Subject Property: No relevant history

Surrounding Property:

CBOA-2759 May 2019: The Board approved a modification of a previously approved site
plan to include a storm shelter (CBOA-2678), on property located al644t East 106th Street
North.

CBOA-2678 May 2019 (Remand): The Board moved to confirm the submissions by Applicant
related to the paper copies of the site plan shown on the poster boards that were presented

at the hearing in Meeting No 457 on June t9,2otg along with signed confirmation that the
paper copies are identical representations of the exhibits shown on the poster boards that
the Board required Applicant to submit as a condition or safeguard to the Board's motion

approving the Special Exception in the matter, case no. CBOA-2678; and the Board moved

to find that based on the evidence in the Record in Case No. CBOA-2678, including, without
limitation the Application, various submittals prior to the Hearing, the Hearing that took
place in Meeting no. 457 on June L9, 2Ot8 along with the submittals and deliberations
during the Hearing, the minutes of the Hearing and related transcript, and the written

confirmation submitted by the Applicant at this special hearing, we find that the Special
Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and will not be injurious
to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare, on property located at
6947 East 1O6th Street North.

CBOA-2678 June 2O18: The Board approved a request for a special exception to allow a
Community Services & Similar Uses (Use Unit 5) in an AG District (Section 3l-0) to permit a
child nursery/child development center, subject to the site plan as submitted at today's
meeting; and approved the request for a variance of the all-weather surface material

3,L
REVTSED 2/!9/2O2O



requirement for parking (Section 1340.D); the required parking spaces per Code will have

hard surfaces, and the overflow parking spaces only will not be required to have hard

surfaces, on property located aT649L East 106th Street North.

CBOA-2568 March 2016: The Board approved a Variance of the minimum lot area from 2
acresto 1-.81acres intheAG District; and a Variance of the minimum land area perdwelling
unit to permit a lot split, on property located al64LO East 106th Street North, Owasso.

ANAIYSIS OF SURROUND¡NG AREA: The subject tract abuts AG zoning in all directions. The parcels to
the west, south, and east appear to have residential uses. The tract to the north is the site of an early

childhood center, see CBOA-2678.

STAFF COMMENTS:

The applicant is before the Board requesting aVariance of the required side yard setback from 15

feet in the AG district (Sec.33O, Table 3); and a Use Variance to allow Use Unit 251or lndustrial
Light uses (Section 1,225).

The Code requires a side yard setback of 15 feet in the AG District. According to the site plan, the
proposed accessory building will be 6 feet from the property line and the size of the accessory

building is 40' x 30'. The use of the building is in connection with the horticultural nursery which is
allowed by right in an AG district. The size of the accessory building is not limited in the AG district.

A Use Variance to allow Use Unit 25, Light Manufacturing lndustry, for lndustrial Light uses is
required as Use Unit 25 is not allowed by right in an AG district. The proposed use will involve using
water based extraction for the processing of medical marijuana and will be located in the existing
20' x 20' building as shown on the site plan. Oklahoma Medical Marijuana Authority, OMMA, will
require the proper licenses be approved and maintained for the processing of medical marijuana.

The applicant has supplied the following statement of hardship: "Existing greenhouses and

agricultural sites dictate building being located near west lot line as to not prohibit agricultural
production. Canada Goose nesting grounds near pond in the middle of lot also dictate current
location of building."

lf inclined to approve, the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably
related to the request to ensure that the proposed use and future development of the subject
property is compatible with and non-injurious to the surrounding area.

Sample Motion

"Move to (approve/deny) a Variance of the required srde yard setback from 75 feet in
the AG district (Sec. 33O Table 3); and a Use Variance to allow Use Unit 25 for lndustrial Lrþht uses
(Section 7225).

Per the Conceptual Plan(s) shown on page(s) of the agenda packet.

Sub.¡'ect to the followin$ conditions, íf any:

Findingthe hardship to be

Finding that by reason of extraordinary or exceptional condítions or circumstances, which are
peculiar to the land, structure or building involved, the literal enforcement of the terms of the Code

3^;,#","",,0,0



would result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or
circumstances do not apply {enerally to other property in the sarne use drstricü and that the
variance to be granted wÍlt not cause substantral detriment to the public $ood or impair the
purposes, spirlt, and intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive PIan.

J. L\
RWTSED 2/rS/202O



subject to conceptual plan 4.15 of the agenda The Board finds the hardshiP to

be the existence of two ructures on an unu ly configured lot, with each currently

having separate drives rate septic s. The renovation of the house on the

future smaller lot be com and mai well. The existing carport on the larger

lot will be allowed to have a g surface. Finding by reason of extraordinary

, which are peculiar to the land, structure oror exceptional conditions or circu
t of the terms of the Code would result inbuilding involved, the literal

ordinary or exceptional conditions orunnecessary hardship; that
circumstances do not apPly gene ly to properly in the same use district; and that

bstantial detriment to the public good orthe variance to be granted wi
impair the purposes, sPirit, a intent of the e, or the Comprehensive Plan; for the

following property:

E 198 W 462 SE SE NE 5-21.14, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

2759-Eller & Detrich - Lou Revnolde TILE OOPT
Action Reauested:
@viouslyapprovedsiteplantoincludeastormshelter(cBoA-
ZGZel. ¡-OCAfpN, 6441 East 106th Street North

Tracy Pipkin, 7211 East 106th Street North, Owasso, OK; stood and stated that he has

a procedural question before the case is heard. Mr. Charney allowed Mr. Pipkin to take

the floor.

Mr. pipkin stated that on June 19,2018 Mr. Charney stated that ""he was compelled 1o

,""usé himself from three items on the agenda, even though he did not have a financial

or other interest in the decision being made that he or his business partners have

holdings very nearby and he feels it is his duty to step aside. The standard is not that

there Èe 
"n 

ãctual conflict of interest or a monetary interest, sometimes even if there is

a potential appearance of impropriety'.."'

Mr. Charney asked if this case is the same intersection? Mr. Pipkin answered

affirmatively. Mr. Pipkin stated that the case he is quoting is two lots over, the rodeo

case.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Pipkin to take a seat so he could make a comment. Mr.

Charney státe¿ there is only one case before the Board today and he knows the case

before the Board today is the day care center. Mr. Charney stated he understands Mr.
pipkin's problem with ñis being on the Board for this today. Mr. Pipkin stood and stated

there is another one.

Mr. Pipkin stated that the Code of Ethics states, "any reasonable person believing to be

unbiased or impartial", that is the question. Mr. Pipkin stated that in that same meeting

Mr. Dillard misiepresented the facts in that case; the materials that were presented to

06tr8/2019t#470 (7)

3,5



otuA - ârsq tllt 80Pï
the Board were overwhelming in favor of support for that request at the time of that
meeting. Mr. Dillard stated that they were balanced between the for and against, and

that is ño where near the case of the actual facts of what was going on. lt could be that
the Board only had a limited supply of information, he does not know, but he thinks it
was overwhelming that it was more like ten to two, and there was a generic letter that
indicated the day care was good.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Pipkin if he was requesting that he recuse himself from the

matter Mr. Reynolds is going to present to the Board today? Mr. Pipkin answered

affirmatively. Mr. Charney thanked Mr. Pipkin for the request and stated that he

understands the nature of the request, and he refuses to grant Mr. Pipkin's request and

will sit in judgement on this matter.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Dillard if he wished to recuse himself from the matter before the

Board today? Mr. Dillard stated that he has no bias and he has not seen the property.

He does not know anyone involved in the property.

Mr. Charney stated that he has spoken to the party's request relating to this request and

thanked Mr. Pipkin for his appearance.

Mr. Charney stated there has been a request for two recusals, and he believes it was on

matters that the Board has spoken to previously when the base case was before the

Board. The Board is going to proceed to hear the case before them today, and he

understands that it has to deal with the same precise property. Mr. Charney stated that
he deems the Board to believe they are in full conformity with the Code of Ethics, and

other Code requirement in the ability to make an impartial decision.

Presentation:
tõu Retnoþs, Eller & Detrich, 2727 East 21st Street, Tulsa, OK; stated he represents

the Washington County Child Care Foundation. This case is regarding an amendment

to the previous site plan the Board approved a year ago to include a storm shelter. The

client intends to build a 1,165 square foot storm shelter adjacent to the facility. The

storm shelter will be one-story high with the same exterior and accent material as the

main building.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds if the storm shelter would conform to the same

architectural style of the principal structure. Mr. Reynolds answered affirmatively. Mr.

Charney asked if there would any modification to the footprint oJ the building. Mr.

Reynolds stated there would be no modification to the original building, it is just the site
plan for a storm shelter.

Mr. Reynolds stated the storm shelter will have the capacity to hold all the children

attending the day care, and maybe any parent picking up children. The storm shelter

has been designed for the worst-case scenario.

06n8t2oret#470,*à. 
u



0tu4'e7s1 tlLt C0PI
Mr. Johnston asked Mr. Reynolds if the storm shelter will contain any other day-to-day

use other than being just a õtorm shelter. Mr. Reynolds stated that at the present time it

will not, but it might-ñave some kind of use in the future; they are trying to be efficient

with the shelter.

lnterested Parties:
ffi35NorthSheridan,Sperry,oK;statedhelivesdiagonaltothe
subject property. Now he has to back into his driveway to be able to get out because of

theiraffic on Sheridan. He found out this is a 501c3 facility and it is for rich kids, it is not

for poor native American children like was presented. He has found out from the City of

Owässo that this will mean the destruction of his house, because nothing about this day

care center came across the City Council desk. Mr. McCarty stated that there will need

to be a three-point turning at thê facility, and his house will be destructed to ease the

traffic. Mr. Mcçarty stateã that is a problem because he is on a fixed income and his

house is older tnan the State of Oklahoma. This facility has dropped the value of his

house because no one wants to live next to that tratfic. Mr. McCarty stated this facility

should have been built in the Sheridan Crossing neighborhood not in his neighborhood.

There will be traffic problems at that location because when there are 200 cars at the

four-way it will be dangerous. A 501c3 should never be used to profit rich kids, it should

only be used for poor children'

Mr. Charney stated that the Board is present today on a very limited matter; the

expansion o¡ ^ 
previously approved site plan by adding a storm shelter. He

understands that Mr. lr¡ccárty does not tike the use on the corner and he thanked Mr.

Mcçarty for his comments. The Board's focus today is whether the Board wishes to

amend ä site plan to allow a storm shelter and that is the focus today'

Tracy pipkin came forward and stated he does not think this expansion is a good idea

because he believes the Board has overstepped the bounds of what could be allowed.

This would continue to go against the Zoning Code that indicates, which is to encourage

and protect agriculturatland, this does not do that. This furthers the wasteful scavenger

developmentin rural areas. These are two specifics items that the Board has ignored.

Iur. piptin stated that he would be interested in understanding what the criteria for trying

those two items. Mr. pipkin stated that in CBOA-2569 Mr. Dillard stated, "this would

change the resident's world ... cannot support the request". Mr. Pipkin stated nothing

has cianged since that hearing. Mr. Pipkin thinks his statement about being biased has

already béen proven that it alréady is. Again, the infrastructure for this is not congruent

to the iype of road and infrastructure that is there. There is no way to properly support

additional construction. The neighborhood is adversely impacted by the noise pollulion,

light pollution, because the noiJe can be heard for miles away. This reduces wildlife

and the road is disintegrating. There is no reason for a commercial environment to be

in this residential area.

06118/2019l#470 (9)

3, 1



ttØA-â7sr tlLE t0PI
Rebuttal:
Lou Reynolds came forward and stated this request will not increase any traffic. The
entrancé ramp is almost 60 feet from the intersection and the other entrance is 330 feet

from the intersection.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds if today's request does not increase the number of
allowed children on the site, ít is simply a storm shelter correct? Mr. Reynolds

answered affirmatively.

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
õToÏoN ot HUTcHtNsoN, the Board voted 5-0-0 (Charney, Crall, Dillard,

HUtChinSOn, JOhnStOn "aye"; nO "nays"; nO "abstentionS"; none "absent") tO APPROVE
the request for a Modification of a previously approved site plan to include a storm

shelter (CBOA-2678). Finding the proposed modification is compatible with and non-

injurious to the surrounding area and meets the previously granted Board relief or meets

the zoning requirements, per code; for the following property:

SE SE SE SEC 10 21 13 IOACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

OTHER BUSINESS

*************

NEW BUSINESS
None

***!t*********

BOARD ENTS
None.

*********tl***

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at2:44 p.m

¿u

Chair

o6lr8l2ot9l#470 Qa)

Date approved

3,8



TULSA COUNTY BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT- 
IUIINUTES of Special Meeting No' 468

MondaY, MaY 13, 2019, 1:30

Ray Jordan Tulsa County Administration' 500 South Denver, Room 119

p.m
B tng

Tulsa, Oklahoma

MEMBERS ENT MEMBERS ABSENT STAFF P ENT OTHERS PRESENT

S. MiIDillardCharney, Chair
Crall, Secretary
Hutchinson, V.Chair
Johnston

UI
R.

arger

******* ***

MINUTES+
None.

The notice and amended agen of id meeting were Poste

office, County Administration Bui , 10th day of MaY, 2019 at

the Office of INCOG, 2 West Suite 800

After declaring a quorum
p.m.

Cha Charney called the meeting to order at 1:30

d at the CountY Clerk's
1:59 p.m., as well as in

*¡t*tr***¡t*rk***

Ms. Ulmer read rmerly called the case for the Board of Adjustment Public Hearing.

tr****r.*******

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

2678-Shane Edmondson - Remand

Action Requested:
speciar Exceotion to ailow. a community services & simirar uses (use unit 5) in

an AG District (section 310) i; permit 
-a 

chitd nursery/child deveropment center.

Lóònnoru, 6441 East 106th street North

osl1312019/#468 (1)

, ,1



Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds to come fon¡rard. Mr. Charney stated that he

understands, from the directiúe from the District Gourt on the order of remand, that the

Board is to consider submissions by the applicant related to certain paper copies,

Presentation:
Éi, Rãy""|d", Eller & Detrich, 2727 East 21st Street, Tulsa, OK; stated that he is

familiar with the order of remand and he has the paper 9op]es for.submission' Mr'

Reynolds submitted ñis copies to the Board for review. Mr. Reynolds stated that this

¡t",i, *", actuaily submittód to staff, but it did not make it into the packet that was

distributed to the court for the app""i, it was a clerical oversight. The copies are of the

documents that were submitted-'new and were also submitted to staff right after the

hearing which is shown on the attachment'

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds if the paperwork was his affidavit' Mr' Reynolds

stated that it is the affidavit óf shane Edmondson who appeared at the hearing and the

applicant that presented the documents'

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds if they were the identical documents that were

presented at the hearing aná shown on t-he poster boards as well at the time of the

irearing. Mr. Reynolds answered affirmativety'

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds if there was anything elseìre would like the Board to

consider in regard to the it,em being discussed today. Mr. Reynolds stated there was

not.

lnterested Parties:
There were interested parties present.

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
on MoTloN of HUTCHINSON, the Board moved to GONFIRM the submissions by

Applicant related t" tl'r" f"p"t "ôp'9" 
of the site plan shown on the poster boards that

Ë;; jresented 
"iil'tu 

nå"iing in Meeting No. 457 on June 19,2018, along with signed

confirmation that thã paper 
"õpi"" 

are idãntical representations of the exhibits shown on

iná poster boards ti"rai tne Board required Ap-pricant to submit as a condition or

safei¡uaro to the Board's motion approving the special Exception in this matter, case

no. CgOR-2678; for the following property:

SE SE SE SEG 1021 13 IOAES, OF TULSA GOUNTY, STATE OF OKTAHOMA

os/L3l20r9t#468 (2)g.\o



Before the vote was taken: Gregory Reilly, Attorney at Law, 320 South Boston, Suite
200, Tulsa, OK; stood and stated that he would like to have the opportunity to review
the documents with the people that were present at the public hearing.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Reynolds if the affidavit had been submitted to Mr. Reilly. Mr.

Reynolds stated that it had not. Mr. Charney.asked Mr. Reynolds to submit the

documents to Mr. Reilly.

Mr. Charney stated that in his judgment as Chair of the County Board of Adjustment the

scope at this hearing was to be limited to a submission by the applicant related to the

copies. lt is his judgment that the applicant has done so and he would be in favor of the

motion as recited by Mr. Hutchinson.

On MOTION of HUTCHINSON, the Board voted 3-0-1 (Charney, Hutchinson, Johnston
"aye"; nO "nays"; Crall "abstainS"; Dillard "absent") mOving to GONFIRM the submissiOnS

by Applicant related to the paper copies of the site plan shown on the poster boards that
were presented at the hearing in Meeting No. 457 on June 19,2018, along with signed
confirmation that the paper copies are identical representations of the exhibits shown on

the poster boards that the Board required Applicant to submit as a condition or

safeguard to the Board's motion approving the Special Exception in this matter, case
no. CBOA-2678; for the following propefty:

SE SE SE SEC 10 21 13 IOACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

Mr. Charney stated that the next, item on the agenda is a directive from the Court that
the Board can determine for the iecord that the matter being discussed were consistent
with the standard of review, which the Board normally applies to such cases. Mr.

Charney asked if there was anyone that would like to make a motion to that effect,

consistent with the Court's limited mandate to the Board the Chair would entertain such
a motion.

On MOTION of HUTCHINSON, the Board moved to FIND that based on the evidence in

the Record in Case No. CBOA-2678, including, without limitation the Application,
various submittals prior to the Hearing, the Hearing that took place in Meeting no.457
on June 19,2018 along with the submittals and deliberations during the Hearing, the

minutes of the Hearing and related transcript, and the written confirmatiôn submitted by

the Applíeant at this special hearing, we find that the Special Exception will be in

harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and will not be injurious to the
neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare; for the following property:

SE SE SE SEC 10 21 13 1OACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

0slL3l20t9t#468 (3)

*r'\\



Before the vote was taken, Gregory Reilly stood. and asked to be recognized, Mr,

Reilly stated that duã process r"qi,ir"r that if there is notice and opportunity to be heard

at a äpeciat hearing tnät tne peopiu affected by that be given the opportunity to be heard

on this motion.

Mr. Charney appreciated the comments given by counsel fgr the appellant, normally, he

couldn,t agree more and he thinks the Bbard has a long history of wanting everyone. !o

"pàãt 
as-much ,no "r 

vehemently as they wish. Mr. charney stated that it is his

understanding, upon advice of Counsel, that the Board has a very limited scope and

that the court remanded this Board today for two very narrow issues. lt is his

understanding that those were the only two mqtterg that the Board were to take, and

there was to be no hearing, no testimony to be taken, no additional hearing to be

incurred regards to the merits of the case or aspect at all, other than the two narrow

matters that he understands the Court directed the Board to review upon remand. That

is consistent on advice of Counsel. Mr. Charney asked Mr. Nolan Fields, Legal Counsel

for the county Board of Adjustment, if that was the directive as he read it'

Nolan Fields stood and stated this directive is based on a Journal Entry that was joint

n"¡reen thã parties and the Gourt signed off_on. ln commensurate, the narrow scope

that the parties effectively crafted the Journal Entry and the Judge remanded it back for,

and this is exactly what the Judge was asking for and it is being delivered'

Gregory Reilly stood and contested that. He thinks the word of the Court and the

Jouinal-Entry that was entered that this matter was to be set for a special hearing with

notice and all other procedural requirements that are required with respect to a special

public hearing.

Nolan Fields stated that in response there is no open meeting requirement for public

comment at an open meeting. Öommensurate with the Court's order and with the rules

and procedures, it is the õhuir's perrogative how. this Board conducts such open

meetings and hearings. Commensurate w¡ür tne order from the Court, he believes the

éoaro is proceeding;àrr".tly in that the Board is either approving or not approving the

findings tirat the Court laid out for them to review'

Gregory Reilly addressed the Chairman, he thinks there is a conflict of interest issue

that needs to be addressed that has not been addressed at the outset with respect to

his development in a location that is approximately two miles from the site of the

proposed d"y."r".' Mr. Reilly thinks that in 2016 the chair gave an eloquent elaboration

of what his standard was with respect to conflicts of interest and an appearance.of

inpropriety, and ùr,"t a reasonablé person belie_ves if there is a conflict- Mr. Reil[

believes there is a conflict and he beiieves there is an appearance of inpropriety in Mr.

Charney presiding over this matter; there probably was at the time the original hearing

took place and he would like to raise that issue'

0s/r3/2019/#468 (4)

*r.\Â



Mr. Charney stated that he appreciates Mr. Reilly raising the issue for the record and for

God and cóuntry to hear. He respects Mr. Reilly's duty for the need to do that. Mr.

Charney stated ih"t on advice on iounsel that this was remanded back to the Board for

trruo very narrow issues. Mr. Charney stated that if he is wrong he would very much

appreciäte a Judge, and he is not acting in that capacity, this Board of four volunteers

*l-,o 
"r" 

doing their very best to try and understand what the Judge directed the Board

to do and hiJreading of that as the Chair, and the Counsel for this Board concurrs in

that reading, is that [he Board is here for two very narrow matters. That is what was

posted on t-he agenda. There were no matters on the agenda rega¡ding the matters that
'h"u" 

been Uroultrt up by Mr. Reilly. Mr. Charney does not believe he has the power to

delve into thosç1oday, or that the Board has the power. He could be wrong but he does

not think he is wrong. lf he is wrong, he welcomes a Judge to send this back to the

Board again and the Board will come back for another special meeling. Mr. Charney

believes in people having full, complete and fair hearings. The Board trys to very

narrowly det'ermine, very narrowly address, what it believes the Court remanded. Mr'

Charney appreciates thê need to make the record and to state the things that have

been stäteà; but he disagrees vehemently that there was any conflict of interest or that

there was even a remoté appearance. Based upon advice of Counsel, and what the

Board believes was fairly addressed some time ago, he will honor the motion that is on

the floor and that motion will be voted on-

On MOTION of HUTCHINSON, the Board voted 3-0-1 (Charney, Hutchinson, Johnston

"aye"; no "nays"; Crall "abstains"; Dillard "absent") moving to FINP that based on the

ev¡den"e ¡n ifre Record in Case No. CBOA-2678, including, without limitation the

Application, various submittals prior to the Hearing, the Hearing that took place in
Meeting no. 45T on June 19,2018 along with the submittals and deliberations during

the Hðaring, the minutes of the Hearing and related transcript, and the written

confirmatioñ submitted by the Applicant at this special hearing, we find that the Special

Exception will be in harmony with the spirit and intent of the Code, and will not be

injuriöus to the neighborhood or otherwise detrimental to the public welfare; for the

following property:

SE SE SE SEC 10 21 13 IOACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:44 p.m

Date approved:

r

05lt312019l#468 ttb.t3



that d be working on FridaYs and Saturdays, dePending on

counse ices is equine and animal assisted theraPY; i.e.,

etc. Ms stated that she has spoken to two people that nofth

property and have no objections to her request.

lnterested Parties;
There were no present.

Comments and Questions;
None.

Board Action:
On MOTION of CHARNEY, the 4-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,

Johnston "aye"; no "naYS"; no "

a Use Variance to allow for an
NS ll "absent") to ÆEßOVE the request for

week. The
dogs, goats,

of the subject

use (Use 1 1) to permit a counseling service in

an AG District (Section 310) a maximum of counselors to operate on site at

one time, for the following

TR BEG 25S & 7W SW NE TH W3O S1O3 E7 5862 W1 13 5326.93 81318.72

N1228.84 W7 N6 SEC 9 21 13 1O.57OAGS, OF TULSA , STATE OF

OKLAHOMA

rty:

tç*****t(******

NEW APPLIGATIONS

2678-Shane Edmoqdson

Action Requested:
ffiallowaCommunityServices&SimilarUses(UseUnit5)in
an AG District (Section 310) to permit a chilci nursery/child development center;

Varìance of the all-weather surface material requirement for parking (Section

1340^D) LOCATION: 6491 East 106th Street North

Presentation:
Shane Edmonds on,2910 East 88th Street South, Tulsa, OK; stated the subject site is

located on the Northwest corner of 106ih Street North and Nofih Sheridan Road' Mr.

Edmondson deferred his presentation.

Dominque Lewis, 13374 East 134th Street North, Collinsville, OK; stated she is the site

director of the Delaware Child Development Center in Claremore. The facility is a full

nurturing center. They teach the children to interact with nature. They will also serve

freshly made from scratch food to the chìldren'

06lr9l20r8l#4s7 (4)

.-r, \ L\



-19

rboû'i'f
Kelsey ,1BTg South Armstrong, Bartlesville, OK; stated she is the Director of Education

anO liálning in Bartlesville. fne Delaware Tribe has three campuses; Claremore,

Owasso, anã the main campus is located in Bartlesville. The facility believes in a

natural environment for the children, so the structures are made of wood and there are

agricultural animals for interaction, i'e., cows'

Tina Mc6lintic, 419 South Moore, Dewey, OK; stated she is the Site Director in

Bartlesville. The facility believes in a natural environment for the children. The

proposed facility will havá double fencing; a natural wood fence around the perimeter of

itre'property *Ítti another natural wood fence around the play area. The facility is

funded 
'nV 

tfre Head Start program and the Delaware Tribe. The hours of operation will

be 7:00 A.M- to 6:00 P.M. Thé peak times for drop off and pick up are from 7:30 A.M. to

g:30 A.M. and 4:00 P.M. to 5:00 P.M. The proposed site will be built in two phases.

The first phase will be for one building, and the second phase will be for a 1,000 square

foot storm cellar.

Shane Edmondson came forward and stated the building setback will be a minimum of

50 feet from the street. There will be a one-way loop drive that will be at least 350 feet

from the intersection for drop off and pick up. The drop off times for the children are

staggered so there should be no traffic back up. The outside deliveries, i.e., food, will

ne 
"rnäoe 

by small trucks two or three times a month. The buitding will be on an aerobic

system. drounds lighting and parking lot lighting will be the minimum allowed by the

iode requirements thus not causing excessive light pollution. '

Interested Parties:
ffiEast106thStreetNorih,oWasso,oK;statedhelivesTzmileeastof
the subject properly. He thinks this project could be a good fit for the corner and for the

area, büt he does ñau" concerns about traffic. On March 15,2016 the Board denied a

rodeo going in. On October 18,2016 the Board denied an RV park going in. On March

6,2011thJroad was closed for repairs and it did not last; Mr. Pipkin showed pictures of

pbor road conditions in the area. The road is in need of repair agall and that still has

not been addressed. Mr. Pipkin stated that he has hearcj that 116th Street North and

g6th Street North are to be widened and if that does happen the traffic will use 106th

Street North to get to Owasso. lf the widening project does happen it will only increase

the traffic and cause major traffic concerns for this dangerous intersectíon.

Garl Mc6arty, 10535 North Sheridan Road, Sperry, OK; stated he is opposed to this

request. Mr. Mcçarty stated that 106th Street North will not support any more traffic

beäause it is the routê the emergency services use to get to both hospitals in owasso

and it causes traffic jams, Mr. 
-McCarty 

stated he is also concerned about property

values decreasing if this request is approved.

Bruce Hoover, 10322 North Sheridan Road, Sperry, OK; stated he is opposed to this

request. Mr. Hoover believes this proposal is. nol ." good use for the.property' Mr.

Hobver stated that he too has major concerns about traffic, especially an increase in the

traffic.

06119l2or8l#4s7 {s)

,t,\5



*ur'rN:
Gharles Edwards,5911 East 106th Street North, Sperry, OK; stated he is opposed to

this request. Mr. Edwards stated that he has concerns about fire and police protection

in the area. There are thefts in the area and people are locking everything down and

locking everything up because thievery has become rampant in the area, to the point

that he had old metál piping stolen from his yard that was from a plumbing remodel in

his house. Mr. Edwards stated that he is also concerned about the decrease in property

values if this is allowed to go in.

Delobie King,6804 East 106th Street North, Sperry, OK; stated herfamily has owned

theìr land for over 80 years, and she has seen a lot of things happen in the area. Ms.

King stated that she hâs serious concerns about traffic at that corner because it is very

dan-gerous. People speed on the road, run the stop sign, and there have been serious

*r"ãkr. Ms. King believes that a commercial business and it is not the same as living in

the country. lVs. Xing does not think this is a safe corner for children and she does not

think it is a good fit for the area.

Ken Heabardin,6250 East 106th Street Noilh, Sperry, OK; stated the subject property

is zoned as AG land and it is not intended to be for commercial use. Mr. Heabardin

stated that he too has traffic concerns, because the road is not designed to handle large

amounts of traffic and it is a dangerous corner.

Shawn pennn 6410 East 106th Street North, Sperry, OK; stated this request is not a

good fit for the neighborhood. He believes the that property values will go down if this is

ãllowed to be buill. He also had concerns about the wildlife in the area because this

proposal will be a danger to the area wildlife. Mr. Penn asked what will happen to his

i-ight. to hunt on his lañO ¡t this center is allowed to be built and asked about his right to

burn his trash on his land. Mr. Penn stated he is concerned about losing his personal

rights if this center is allowed to go in.

Mary Odom, 10914 North Sheridan Road, Sperry, OK; stated she lives lTomlle North

of the subject corner and has lived there over 40 years. During that time she thinks

Sheridan Road has been resurfaced three times, and 106th Street has been resurfaced

maybe once so the traffic concerns expressed are valid concerns. Ms. Odom stated

tfiai the picture she saw had 35 designated parking spaces so there must be a lot more

people coming and going than what has been presented. Ms. Odom believes if this is

äpproveU tfr¡sïilt opãn tñe door to more retail in the area and it would disrupt a style of

living everyone is accustomed to.

Les Riker, 1105'1 North Sheridan Road, Sperry, OK; stated that he lives T" mile north of

the subject corner. Mr. Riker stated he has traffic concerns and light pollution concerns.

There át" r"ny thefts in the area, so the center will eventually light up the grounds to

deter theft. tr¡i. Rifer stated if this request is approved it will be a stepping stone to

other commercial þusinesses going in'

06lr9l2ot8l#4s7 (6)

3.\ L0



, -\q

rþ'ft.?ï*
Jennifer Cyiza,398449 West 4000 Road, Ramona, OK; stated she lives on 50 acres

and she usés Delaware Child Development Center in Bartlesville. There is research the

shows that it is important for children to have spaces where they can explore and open

play. The people who will use the child care center are people that live in the area and

itt"y 
"r" 

atreaOy using the streets. The center is not a commercial property; the center

has utilized small añimals and have bought in that area, so they can bring that

environment more to families. Ms. Cyiza stated that it is important that children learn

how to deal with and live with wildlife from the country setting. lt is important that our

children cherish the Oklahoma Prairie and that is what the center is trying to teach. Ms.

Cyiza stated that a commercial business will be paying taxes and will help the

inirastructure. This is an added value to the community because educational facilities

make property values go up not down.

Mr. Charney reminded the audience that it is the Board's responsibility to focus on land

usage. Hé understands where the public is coming from, but he wants them to

unciérstanci that the Code demands that the Board focuses upon the existing zoning anci

what the new use will actually be on the subject property'

Rebuttal:
Shan" Eãmondson came fonruard and stated that by Code this use is not prohibited,

but as a Special Exceptíon each request is to be taken case by case as long as it fits

within agricultural and fits in with the spirit of the Code. Mr. Edmondson stated that

traffic concerns are valid concerns, and he has already been asked to see what the

ability is to do the infrastructure improvement. Studies show that home values do

increãse with educational facilities in place. This is a non-profit organization solely for

the use of children, so it is not a QuikTrip. The building is not on the corner, it is set

back. There are two hospitals within three miles and there will be an emergency plan in

place. All personnel will have to go through training to understand what the emergency

procedureé are if something does happen. Safety is the number one concern at the

äenter. The property is ruial but it is very close to a hospital so that is one of the

reasons it was choseh. The center will need to meet Code to receive a permit to build,

so engineering will be required, and water studies will be done. The wildlife will be

disturbled, 
"nã 

they will move out. The property will be cleaned up and will be

landscaped, and there will always be animals there. Mr. Edmondson stated that it

would be dangerous to have a set up that could not handle the car flow, so studies have

been done on ttre two existing facilities and that is how the flow was determined, and

the parking spaces are by Code. Occupancy requires all the parking spaces that the

facility may not need. Mr. Edmondson stated there is a need for this facility because

there is a lack of child care in the area.

Mr. Dillard asked Mr. Edmondson who currently owns the subject propeñy. MI,

Edmondson stated the Delaware Child Development Center owns the property' Mr.

Dillard asked Mr. Edmondson if he had stated previously that the facility is a 501-C3.

Mr. Edmondson answered affirmatively'

06lt9l2o|8l#457 (7)

J.t1



-1q.:[,

ud-";$
Cart Mcçarty came fonruard and stated that the traffic has become a nightmare in the

area so mucñ so that he has to back into his driveway, so he can see the traffic when

leaving his property.

Mr. Charney asked Mr. Edmondson why he sought a Variance on the hard surface

requiremeni for parking. Mr. Edmondson stated the Variance was filed with the

,ri¡.t"nr" of the INCOê staff. Ms. Ulmer stated there is overflow parking designated

on the site plan that did not have all-weather surface parking, so the Variance request

does not cover the entire parking, only the overflow parking'

Gomments and Questions:
l\¡rjohnston siatedGt tle r¡uas undecided. This area is a corner lot and one day that

corner will be something. This parlicular use it is close to residential and it will maintain

the natural amenities for the neighborhood. Traffic is traffic.

Mr. Hutchinson stated that he can support the request. This is a ten-acre tract on a

hard corner. ln the Comprehensive Plan almost every hard corner is commercial, and

this is the most less intrusive application that can go on the subject corner. This is a

main thoroughfare, and the worst part about this is being the first application for the

area regarding develoPment.

Mr. Charney stated that he has lived in the Owasso area his entire life and cares

imrnensely ior the entire community. Virtually every corner within the Comprehensive
plan shows every corner as having a potential commercial use. Traveling eastward,

outside the current city limit of Owasso, the overall Comprehensìve Plan has gone

almost to the Port and ihe corner have future commercial concepts designated. lt is the

planning norm, that the arterial streets will have some day some sort of co_mmercial use.

The concerns can be lumped into two categories. One is changing the more rural

agricultural nature of the aiea, and the other is significant traffic concerns. Regarding

trãff¡c, there has been a lot of good occur with a new user that has sígnificant capacity,

and there are means by which to get that addressed'

Mr. Dillard stated when monetary values are looked at regarding property that is a

supposition. Property values increase when there is an educational opportunity in the

areà, and that has been seen over and over. This will improve the area, but it will not

improve the tax base. When people start using the facility it may cause the County

Commissioners to study the intersection to make it better for the traffic, because there

are medicalfacilities c.lose by too.

Board Action:
õril|,tõlr-loN "f GHARNEY, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,

JohnStOn "aye"i no "nays"; nO "abstentions", Crall "abSent") tO APPROVF the reqUeSt fOr

a Special Eiception to allow a Community Services & Similar Uses (Use Unit 5) in an

AG District tsection 310) to permit a child nursery/child development center, subject to

the site plan as submitted at today's meeting; for the following property:

06lret20r8/#4s7 (8)

-r.\ 8



.-a*
.Iþ T.

Ugs-[erd'
sE sE sE sÊc ß 21 t3 loAcs, oF TULSA couNTY, srATE oF oKLAHoMA

On MOTION of HUTCHINSON, the Board voted 4-0-0 (Charney, Dillard, Hutchinson,

JohnSton "aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Crall "absent") to APPROYF the request for

a Variance óf tt.'. all-weather surface material requirement for parking (Sectìon 1340.D)'

fne ruqu¡red parking spaces per Code will have hard surfaces, and the overflow parking

spaces only will not be required to have hard surfaces; for the following propefty:

SE SE SE SEC 10 21 13 IOACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

2679-Jason Jacobs

Action ReEuested:
an CS District (Section
service use (Use Unit

to permit a firework stanci (Use iJnit

): Soecial Exception to permit an automobile sa

17 CS District (Secti on710). LOCATION: uth 265th West Avenue

Presentation:
Sherry Jacobs, E. Lee Terrace, Sand SP gs, OK; stated she has owned the

convenience store b since 1999. She like to conved the area adjacent to

the store into the autom
building.

sales lot and the firework stand on the side of the

lnterested Parties:
There were no interested Parties P

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
On MOTION of CHARN , to APPROVE the request to permit

a firework stand (U SE nit 2) in an CS District (Section Special Excqption to

permit an automobi les and service use (Use Unit 17) in a C istrict (Section 710),

subject to a time limit, June 1 9,2023; for the following pro

PRT SW NE EG 491.05N SWC NE TH N63I.92 NE1Y435.36 .99

sw255.71 14.45 POB SEC 18 19 10 3.70Acs, oF TULSA COUNTY' TE

OF

061t9120r8/#4s7 (9)

J,\:1



207), g¡ven the existence of easement the house is set back substantially off
the publicly dedicated rig for the owing property:

N/2 Wtz SE SW SEC 26 17
OKLAHOMA

IOACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF

Mr. Charney recused himself
left the meeting.

a ftems #7, #8 and #9 at 3:09 P.M. and

2õ68-.Jode Llnqlq F elil trupr
Action Requested:
Variance of the minimum lot area from 2 acres to 1.81 acres in the AG District
(Section 330, Table 3); Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit (Section
330, Table 3) to permit a lot split. LOCATION: 6410 East 106'n Street North,
Owasso

Presentation:
Jode Llngle, 13643 South Highway 170 West, West Fork, AR; stated he wants to
divide the property which is 3.8 acres and that is slightly smaller than the required 4
acres required for a lot split. There are two existing houses on the property and if he is
able to divide the land each house will have their own lot.

lnterested Parties:
@East96thStreetNorth,Sperry,oK;askedifMr.Lingleisallowedto
split his property will it apply to the whole area or will it be just for his property. Mr.
Hutchinson stated that this request will only apply to Mr. Lingle's property.

Comments and Questions:
None.

Board Action:
On MOTION of JOHNSTON, the Board voted 3-0-0 (Dillard, Hutchinson, Johnston
"aye"; no "nays"; no "abstentions"; Charney, Crall "absent") to APPROVE the request for
a Variance of the minimum lot area lrom 2 acres to 1.81 acres in the AG District
(Section 330, Table 3); Variance of the minimum land area per dwelling unit (Section
330, Table 3) to permit a lot split. The hardship ls that there are houses that exist on
the property and will not cause a detriment to the area; for the following property:

PRT NE NE NE BEG NEC THEREOF TH S37O W46O N37O E46O POB SEC 15 2'' 13
3,9O7ACS, OF TULSA COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA

0311s/2016/#430 (t3)
2 a?O



0
Feet
200 400 cBoA-2805 Note: Graphic overlays may notprecisely

al¡gn w¡th phys¡cal leatures on the ground.Subject
TractL# 21-13 15

Aeñat Photo Date: February *r9, 2 \



0

Feet
50 100

Subject
Tract

cBoA-2805 Note: Gnphic overlays may not precisely
al¡gn w¡lh physical îeatures on the grcund.

Aeilal Photo Date: February 2019, e2i-13 15

N#



Lookingsouth across E. 706th Street North

Lookingsoutheast from E. 706th St N.

3, e,5



Looking, west from E. l06th St. N.

LookinÊ, at childcare facility north of subject property across E. 7O6th St. N.

J. ÀL[



J Robi

To:
Subject:

Kyle Gibson
RE: Hardship

From: Kyle Gibson <kyle@aligndesigngroup.com>
Sent: Monday, February 3,2020 9:30 AM
To: Jones, Robi <rjones@incog.org>
Subject: Hardship

Robi,

CBOA-2805 attached you will find the Site Plan for CBOA - 2805.

The hardship is:

Existing greenhouses and agriculture sites dictate building being located near west lot line as to not prohibit agriculture
production. Canada Goose nesting grounds near pond in the middle of lot also dictate current location of building.

Kyle Gibson
J u ri sdicti on a I Coord i n otor
kvle@aliondesionoroup.com
P. 918-629-4694

1 3,A5



uxrßfã0

asT Ím sfñEdNonn

-t

RAfAEt GA¡CIA
ô3¡2 EAS t06ÍI ÍREF NOnTH

2d
I'NPTAÍID

zet

casil r lEltca{tt!

@
I t SCAIE; l" = 30'

R 13 E

EAST IOóIh STREET NORI}I

ô
o
z-
<lô
8,21

ã¡¡
t

o2

Jz

E

oz

ttrffir#@
flonf IEÁN¡NINÉEffOllIY

&lo ilt t0¿ü ltnåÍ Non[

fxisÍflG'
GAE€ilrcUSE

Êx5nNc
CÊ€EMOUSE

ãÍsuilG

-303¡3:*.-. -.-. -.-.-. -L

.l

Fl

Hl

lo

'Erg

tÍ
lõ

t--
I

-t

I

"il
ütE

It

i

L

^1, " 
ror","^ ro""*,

IoilalftodIsHmtDAH ñoaD

J

T

t&60tof,Í rfrtitoÂN RoaD

+
104&NomÍ!¡tiloaN ¡oao

3, a.lo



A
AG

SUBJECT TRACT

RMH
LR

LR

A

RE

LEGEND

Jenks Corporate Limits

I Sapulpa Corporate Limits

ffi Tulsa Corporate Limits

Feet
2500 cBoA-2806500

18-12 22

r{. t



TUI.SA GOUT{TY BOARD OF ADJUSTMEilT
GASE REPORT

TRS= 8222
GZM: 55

CASE NUMBER: CBOA-2806

CASE REPORT PREPARED BY: Robi Jones

HEARING DATET 03/17/2020 1:30 PM

APPLICAI{T: Nicholas Brown

ACTlOtt REOUESTED: Variance of the minimum frontage requirement on a public street/dedicated right-
of-way from 3O ft to 0 ft in the AG district (Section 2O7).

TOCAT¡OI{t 9525 S 33 AV W ZONED: AG

FEI{CEI¡NE: Jenks

PRESET{T USE: Vacant TRACT SIZE: 2.42 acres

LEGAL DESCRIPTIOil: BEG 485E SWC NW TH N388.7tE275 SWLY CL NICKEL CREEK 180 SWLY 2IO.43
sw26.1_ W227.62 TO POB SEC 22 L8 t2 2.4254C5,

RELEVAT{T PREIIIOUS AGTIONS: None relevant

ANATYS¡S OF SURROUNDING AREA: The subject tract is surrounded by AG zoning in all directions. There
are residential uses to the west, south, and southeast. The remaining properties appear to be agricultural
uses and are located within the 100-year floodplain.

STAFF GOMMEI{TS:

The applicant is before the Board requesting a Variance of the minimum frontage requirement on a
public street or dedicated right-of-way from 30 ft to 0 ft to permit a single-wide mobile home on the
subject lot. The applicant provided the following statemenlt "l am requestin$this variance because
I plan to park a single-wide mobile home on the property and was told by Tulsa County that the
building permit to park the home could not be approved without a variance. The property is
Iandlocked and there is no street fronta{e. While the property to the west has a $ranted easement
for in{ress and egress to the property in question, the zoninS code requires the variance before a
building permit can be,ssued."

The submitted site plan indicates that the subject lot has access through an easement located on

the parcel to the west which abuts South 33ro West Avenue. The Code requires owners of land
utilized for residential purposes to maintain 30 feet of frontage on a public street. The applicant
has submitted a copy of a General Warranty Deed that describes a twenty-five (25) foot roadway
easement for ingress and egress to the subject property.

The single-wide mobile home is permitted by right in the AG district and it meets all the bulk and
area requirements. lt appears that the placement of the mobile home will not be in the lOO-year
floodplain.

\,L
REVTSEù 3/2/2O2O



The Tulsa County Comprehensive Plan, as well as the Jenks Comprehensive Plan, describe the
Land Use Plan as Low lntensity and Development Sensitive. Low lntensity areas are described as
those areas with four or fewer residences per acre. Development Sensitive are described as those
areas in which the property is subject to flooding as determined by the Flood lnsurance
Administration. ln this case, the placement of the proposed mobile home does not appear to be in
the Development Sensitive area of the property. See the attached Land Use Plan.

lf inclined to approve, the Board may consider any condition it deems necessary and reasonably
related to the request to ensure that the proposed use and future development of the subject
property is compatible with and non-injurious to the surroundingarea.

Sample Motion:

"Move to (approve/deny) a Variance to reduce the required 30 feet of fronta{e on a
publíc road or dedicated right-of-way from 3O feet to 0 feet in an AG district (Section 207).

Finding the hardship to be

FindinE by reason of extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstanceg which are peculiar
to the land, structure or building involved, the llteral enforcement of the terms of the Code would
result in unnecessary hardship; that such extraordinary or exceptional conditions or circumstances
do not apply {enerally to other property in the same use district; and that the variance to be

Q,ranted will not cause substantial detriment to the public good or impair the purposes, spirit, and
intent of the Code, or the Comprehensive Plan."

¿l.3
REVTSEù3/2/2O2O



0

Feet
250 500 cBoA-2806 Note: G'ã,ph¡c overlays may not prec¡sely

al¡gn w¡lh physical featurês on the ground.Subject
TractL# 18-12 22

Aer¡alPhotoDate: February2ott q. q



Feet
0 50 100

!-''
cBoA-2806 Note: Graphic overlays may not precisely

align with physical features on the ground.Subject
Tract

18-12 22
Aerial Photo Date: February rott 

\, s



tAND USE PLAN

lOO YEAR FLOODPLAIN

INTENSITY

Low lntensity

Medium lntensity

High lntensity

Medium Commercial

Light Commercial

Development Sensitive

l-
I
l

I

I

i

i

I

I

\

Ur>l
<lll
.t.\,
c..¡l

Øl

7

I

_l

j

SUBJECT TRACT

-l-l rr

i
I

j

!

I

l

I

----l

I

:tu>

I
0o

',N
'v)

I

s
;<rl
i¡-
çv).'

Ø
l

i

-l

I

I

I

0

Feet
250 500 cBoA-2806

Ld"L*
tö-t¿ ¿¿



Jones, Robi

From:
Sent:
To:
Subiect:

Nick Brown < nick.r.brown2002@gmail.com >

Wednesday, February 12,2020 8:15 AM
Jones, Robi

Nick Brown Variance Request

Robi,

I am requesting this variance because I plan to park a single-wide mobile home on the property and was told by Tulsa

County that the building permit to park the home could not be approved without a variance. The property is landlocked

and there is no street frontage. While the property to the west has a granted easement for ingress and egress to the

property in question, the zoning code requires the variance before a building permit can be issued.

Thank you,

Nick Brown

t{1 .tl



\(

5lb I 0 tqq

IN üIITNESS II¡HEREOF,
have executed or eaused to
ear first above written.

st B4Zbti

the said party of the first part
be executed, this Ínstrument the

ñ

I
{
ì)

n
t4

t
tN

GENERAL üTARRANTY DEED(with Survlvorshíp Clause)

t\ rHrs rNÐENruRE, yggg, this .?O¡il, d.ay of october, tggr,
N between JrMMrE ¡¿anrd NEI¡trToN, a single person, party of the fírst
-t¡t part' and JIMMIE MARIE NEWTON and SUE À¡¡N NeinIfON eROlVN, party of
\ the second part.

t¡trrrNESSETH, That in consideratl_on of the sum of ?EN and No/l-oo($10.00) DOLLARS, the receípt of which is hereby acknowteájàa, said
¡-:arty of the first part does, by these presenls, grarrt, -bargain,
s91t 

-a1d convey unto JTMMTE MÀRIE NEVïITON and SUE eNÑ NetùToN BRohtN,
:hg folrowing described rear estate, sl-tuated in the county ofTulsa, State of Oklahoma, to-wit:

A tract of rand located in the Ï¡¡est Half of the Northwest
ouarter (w/2 Nw/4) of section Twenty-two {22), TownshipEighteen ( 18 ) North, Range Twetve (L2) fait, TulsaCounty, State of Oklahoma according to the U.S.
Government survey thereof; more parti-culãrIy described asBeginnning at a point twenty-fJ-ve (25) feet East of theSouthwest corner of saÍd l¡üest Half of the Northwest
Q'aPrter (w/2 Nw/4) thence North and pararler to the westlíne of the Ì¡ùest Half of the Northwest euarter (w/z NI^I/4)a distance of 38B.7L feet, thence East a distance of 460feet, thence south a dÍstance 3BB.7L feet, thence west adistance of 46o feet to the point of beginning; subjectto a twenty-five (25) foot roadway easement for ingiess
and egress located on the south twenty-five (2s) feãt orthe above described property. coNTÀrNrNG: 4.Lo acresmore or 1ess.

To HAVE AND To HOLD THE SAME as joint tenants, and not as tenantsin common. with fee simpl-e title in the survivo:: together wlth all
"ld singurar the tenements, hereoltaments and appurtenancesthereunto belonging or in any wise appertalnl-ng forevãi.

- And said party of the first part, her successors or assígns,do hereby covenant, promise and agree to and with said parties ofthe se_cond part at the dellvery of these presents they arã lawfulryseÍzed in their own right of an absolute ànd indefeas-ible estate oiinheritance in fee slmpre, of and in all singurar the above granted
and described premises, with the appurtenances; that the same arefree, clear and discharged and unencumbered of and from all formerand other grants, titles, charges, estates, judgments, taxes,assessments and encumbrances, of whatsoever nature and kind.EXCEPT: Easements and buf-lding restrictions of record and special
assessments not yet due;

and that party grantor wíll !ùARRANT and FOREVER DEFEND the sameulto said parties of the second part, their heirs, executors, oradminístrators, against said parties of the first ¡rart, theirsuccessors or assigns, and all and every person or persons
whomsoever, lawfully claiming or to claim thè same.

hereto
day and

û
tD

E q,8



53bt 0200

STATE OF OKLAHOMA

COUNTY OF TULSA

)
)
)

ss.

Before ftê, the undersiqned Notary, public, in and for saidcounty and Statî;,-?i *r=.3L a"y "fl¿ù¿"¡,-îggL:']elsonauyappeared JTMMTE MÀRIE NE}ITON to me know-nË-bã the iEFntiäal personwho subscribed her name to the foregotng instrument andacknowredged to me that she executed the same as her free andvoluntary act and deed for the uses and purposes therein set forth.

Given under rny hand and seal of office the day and year lastabove written.

ary

expires:
¡!¡

4.",,¡1í'
{,o.,,,'!,!, ,:;t, q

t

t-4,
J

¿lI
i 'jÉì\o-.-

13 'r

f¡ fiilx

11

4



Lìlã
t

Ë

-l
J

.l¡
\a.

lrt

t

.I\
L¡r*t:
icNl-

cr""\---

{¡€þ/ô{r/^i

1
I
I

I
È
R

o
C.¡

R
@
(o

G

Ë

1úåL

-go'
o
o

fs

Ín
n-
rt
E
-gctl
oo

få qve S 33rd W Ave S 33rd W Ave S33¡d WAve S 33rd W Ave L{. \0




